GRAND RQT COUNTY
e e e et

P s s S
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Wednesday, December 5, 2007
8:00 a.m. —9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, M1

AGENDA
Convention
. L Call to Order
Authority I Airport Presentation— Jim Koslosky Information
Steven Heacock, III. Approval of October 24,2007, Minutes Action
Chairman

Birgit Klohs IV. Committee Reports
i Ehariss a. Operations Committee
Gary Melnerney i. Agreement with Producer for Wine & Food Festival Action
fec"ieTHe""vlvf" ii. CVB Report Information
osep omaselll
oI Gramsedi b. Finance Committee

i. SMG October 2007 Financial Statements - Action

DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

ii. CAA October 2007 Financial Statements Action

iii. CAA Audited Financial Statements — FY 2007 Action

iv. Amendment to FY 2008 Budget Action

v. Investment Policy Review — Benchmarking Information

Vi. SMG Food & Beverage September Revenue and Information

Commission Report
V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information

V1. Public Comment
VII. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, January 23, 2008

Aﬁ\ VIII. Adjournment

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

ATNINE ; *Wishing You a Joyous Holiday Season* [ JEVOSPLACE

Van Andel Arena®

130 Zulton West 303 M DeVA?s Plﬁl(\:;;o
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503- ids, M1 49503
6]6,742,26050 03-2601 Grand Rapids, MéIIiQSgg ggg

Fax 616.742.659

Fax 616.742.6197

OO w




Item II1

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, October 24, 2007

I. Call to Order

Chair Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Chair Heacock presided and Susan
Waddell recorded in the absence of Treasurer/Secretary Birgit Klohs. Chair Heacock moved the
actions to the top of the agenda to accommodate a member whose schedule required an early

departure.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin

George Heartwell

Gary McInerney
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Clif Charles
Birgit Klohs

Staft/Others: Scott Atchison
David Czurak
Daryl Delabbio
Brian Dykema
Joyce Flowers
Tim Gortsema
Chris Knape
Janet Korn
Chris Machuta
Steve Miller
Susan Waddell
Jana Wallace
Richard Wendt
Robert White

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Interested Citizen
Grand Rapids Business Journal
Kent County

Interested Citizen

CVB

Grand Rapids Griffins
The Grand Rapids Press
CVB

SMG

SMG

CAA

City of Grand Rapids
Dickinson Wright

Kent County

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the September

26, 2007. Motion carried unanimously.

II1.. Committee Reports

a. Finance Committee.

i SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 24,2007 -2

Mr. Machuta presented the September 2007 SMG financial statements.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Heartwell, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements
Jor DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended September 30, 2007. After review
and discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

ii. CAA Financial Statements
CAA staff presented the September CAA financial statements

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements
Jor the period ended September 30, 2007. After review and discussion, the motion was unanimously
adopted.

Mr. White presented a report on the Finance Committee’s review of the investment policy. The CAA has
invested excess construction funds in the Kent County investment pool. The County treasurer makes
investments primarily in laddered one-year CDs. Under the investment pool agreement, there is no
minimum amount of deposit, no minimum period of deposit, and withdrawals are dispersed within seven
days or less. Currently, there is $20.4 million on deposit with the Kent County Treasurer, earning an
average 5.09% rate of return. The Fed Funds rate as of September 18 was 4.75%. The yield curve is flat
and it might be prudent to leave the money untouched. However, if the yield curve changes in the next 6-
8 months, the CAA could possibly invest some funds elsewhere without risking money needed for
operations. The Committee will be updating the capital needs plan and comparing the schedule to a cash
flow forecast.

iii. Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the Years Ended June 30,
2007 and 2006, and Independent Auditors’ Report

Mr. Machuta presented the SMG special purpose financial statements. The special-purpose financial
statements are issued to test the validity of the SMG incentive fee calculations. Deloitte & Touche has
found the SMG operations to be well controlled and has provided “clean” audits for both facilities.
Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to accept the Special Purpose Financial
Statements as of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and Independent Auditors’ Report —
DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®. The motion was unanimously adopted.

iv. SMG Food and Beverage Revenue and Commission Report

Staff presented the September per cap comparison report that showed consumption at two events fell
short from the previous year, although attendance had increased.

IV. Grand Rapids Griffins Update

Tim Gortsema, Senior Vice President of Business Operations, stated that the Griffins recently welcomed
new head coach, Mike Stothers. The Griffins just kicked off its 12" season and maintained its opening
night sellout streak. The Griffins have enjoyed 11 years of excellence, capturing five league division
titles and competing nine of 11 years in the playoffs. During the past eight years, the Griffins have had
the most wins and division titles of any “triple-A” hockey team. A total of 86 Griffins players have been



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 24, 2007 - 3

sent to the National Hockey League. Every year the Griffins are among the top 10 in attendance out of
nearly 100 professional league teams across North America. Last year, the Griffins helped generate more
than $320,000 for area charities. The Griffins just inked a new five-year affiliation with the Detroit Red
Wings. Since the affiliation began, the Griffins and Red Wings have combined for more standings points
that any other AHL/NHL pairing. After a few years of a decrease in attendance, the Griffins saw an
increase last year due to its focus on group sales. Group tickets offer fundraising opportunities to help
teams and organizations. Going forward, the Griffins will concentrate on selling hockey as entertainment,
freshening the arena environment and experience, and rubbing shoulders with the community.

Chair Heacock stated that the CAA appreciates the Griffins as a tenant and asked how the Board could
assist the organization. Mr. Gortsema responded by investing in capital improvements that enhance fan
experience, such as a visible LED ribbon. Chair Heacock inquired whether there was any way to push
people down closer to the ice. Mr. Gortsema explained that they considered a curtaining system but it can
be a challenge since some people like their upper bowl seats. Mr. Chamberlin commented on the
difficulty to increase group sales and lauded the Griffins on its achievement. In answer to a question from
Mr. Tomaselli regarding day-of-game sales, Mr. Gortsema stated that there is usually a 500-ticket drop.
Chair Heacock congratulated the Griffins on its 12" season and thanked Mr. Gortsema for the excellent
presentation.

V.. Committee Reports (continued)

b. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated that the Committee received an update on capital improvement projects at both
buildings. The scoreboard matrix at the Arena has been installed and the outdoor marquee project is
almost completed. At DeVos Place®, six 52” flat panel LED displays will be installed and will provide
wayfinding assistance to the patrons. A couple of carryover capital projects from previous years include
the fire curtain/fall arrest system at DeVos Place® and the hydraulic seating at the Arena. SMG staff is
investigating whether it would be worthwhile to install variable break drives (VBD) in the Arena ice plant
to help conserve energy and control costs.

Janet Korn, Vice President of Marketing for the CVB, introduced Joyce Flowers, Director of National
Accounts, in the CVB’s Detroit office. Joyce’s role is to expand meeting opportunities in southeast
Michigan. Joyce reported on a recent workshop titled “Everybody’s Gathering at the River. More than
20 Detroit-area religious leaders attended the meeting to learn why Grand Rapids is such a popular choice
for religious meetings. Workshop presenters included Dan Oglesby, Senior Vice President of Human
Resources for Spectrum Health, and Dr. Robert Brumfield, Senior Pastor of Oak Grove African
Methodist Episcopal Church-Detroit. Overall, the meeting achieved its goals of forging new
relationships, meeting new potential clients, and dispelling perceived barriers between the east and west
sides of the state. Mr. Tomaselli suggested that Joyce contact Rev. Robert Dean, former City
Commission, and now a State Representative. Rev. Dean hosts an annual meeting in Grand Rapids and
may be willing to speak with the ministers. >

VI. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. Miller presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and Mr.
Machuta presented the schedule for the Van Andel Arena®.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 24, 2007 - 4

VI. Public Comment

Scott Atchison, Michigan Flashcard, approached the podium but stated he would like to address the
Board when all members were present.

VII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is the combined November/December meeting scheduled for
Wednesday, December 5, 2007, 8:00 a.m.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:25 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.b.i.



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

DeVos Place performed a consistent with budget for the month, however, duc to a

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
188 443 636 647 an
135,494 586,539 722,033 723,350 (1,317)
650,064 1,886,494 2,536,558 2,541,693 (5,135)
629,027 1,431,932 2,060,959 2,060,745 214
1,279,001 3,318,426 4,597,517 4,602,438 @.921)
46,499 186,035 232,534 229,000 3,534
1,325,590 3,504,461 4,830,051 4,831,438 (1,387)
46,560 120,036 166,596 166,596 -
66,932 141,616 208,548 208,548 -
24,515 80,142 104,657 104,657 -
424,171 961,209 1,385,380 1,385,380 -
316,883 621,564 944,447 944,447 -
20,626 57,000 77,626 77,626 -
74,500 174,223 248,723 248,723 .
606,820 1,610,929 2,217,749 2,217,749 -
1,581,008 3,772,719 5,353,726 5,353,726 .
(255,418) (268,258) (523,675) (522,288) (1,387)
153,300 153,300 153,300 .
(255,418) (421,558) (676,975) (675,588) (1,387)

prior month adjustment to rent, direct event income shows an increase overall.

October also marks the month that DeVos Place finally played host to the Rabbit
Breeders Association and all of their 23,000 rabbits.




DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending October 31, 2007
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

YTD

Number of Events
Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income
Other Income
Indirect Expenses
Net Income

EVENT INCOME

October October October
Actual Budget FY 2007
71 78 70
48,411 62,270 51,852
$316,248 $273,089 $230,815
239,498 248,379 266,996
18,965 19,083 14,490
(440,563) (434,703) (406,789)
$134,149 $105,848 $105,511
YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
188 207 173
135,494 170,045 110,067
$650,064 $659,820 $497,332
629,027 648,922 554,583
46,499 76,332 53,096
(1,581,008) (1,615,632) (1,463,670)
($255,418) ($230,558) ($358,659)

Event income came in at expected levels for the month for events hosted. October also includes an
adjustment for rent associated with Septembers Lions Club meeting as it was incorrectly booked
in theprevious month's statement, this adjustment is the sole cause of the increase above.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in slightly behind budget for the month. Electrical income came in higher
than anticipated, however, was offset in part by lower than expected spending in Audio/Visual.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels overall for the month.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

----------------- CURRENT- - - === === =mmmmmmem oo CYTD-m——m——memmcmmme
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 349,044 305,100 242,064 739,158 747,075 555,317
SERVICES INCOME <32,796> <32,011> <11,249> <89,094> <87,255> <57,985>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 316,248 273,089 230,815 650,064 659,820 497,332
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 72,294 77,070 98,919 243,690 242,328 206,262
NOVELTY 248 1,274 437 2,968 2,868 2,110
ELECTRICAL 75,299 50,812 71,572 141,947 125,717 121,328
OTHER ANCILLARY 91,656 119,223 96,067 240,422 278,009 224,882
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 239,498 248,379 266,996 629,027 648,922 554,583
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 555,746 521,468 497,811 1,279,091 1,308,742 1,051,914
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 18,965 19,083 14,490 46,499 76,332 53,096
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 574,711 540,551 512,301 1,325,590 1,385,074 1,105,011
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 15,753 13,884 12,019 46,560 55,536 43,250
FINANCE 16,754 17,379 16,613 66,932 69,516 74,642
MARKETING 2,928 8,722 2,565 24,515 34,888 24,720
OPERATIONS 111,200 109,287 120,551 424,171 472,868 411,843
EVENT MANAGEMENT 82,412 78,454 61,189 316,883 313,816 274,218
BOX OFFICE 5,561 6,469 6,051 20,626 25,876 26,657
SALES 17,429 20,728 18,194 74,500 82,912 74,741
OVERHEAD 188,525 179,780 169,608 606,820 560,220 533,599
INDIRECT EXPENSES 440,563 434,703 406,789 1,581,008 1,615,632 1,463,670
NET OPERATING INCOME 134,149 105,848 105,511 <255,418> <230,558> <358,659>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 134,149 105,848 105,511 <255,418> <230,558> <358,659>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

---------------- CURRENT--~=-r=rwecece-ee —--cecweveee--YEAR TO DATE---------~---
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 600 0 0 5,106 0 13,672
Changeover Setup Billed 209 o] 1,083 4,749 0 1,418
Stagehands Billed 133,212 142,527 143,619 346,254 309,537 275,078
Security Billed 21,432 14,145 10,915 43,313 35,427 29,938
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 9,460 10,990 15,845 24,437 24,415 25,733
Box Office Billed 900 1,300 1,800 2,400 3,500 3,000
Ticketing Service Billed 5,152 10,620 11,218 11,338 24,220 21,165
Utilities Billed 4,050 [ 0 4,050 0 0
City Police Fire Billed 1,615 125 2,975 5,808 625 4,975
Traffic Control Billed 350 0 0 350 0 0
EMT Medical Billed 2,350 2,825 3,450 6,650 7,000 5,969
Cleaning Billed 5,136 0 2,418 6,011 0 2,442
Insurance Billed 250 0 368 1,208 0 2,431
Group Sales Commissions Billed 1] 0 112 0 0 112
Telephone Billed 7,585 7,250 4,820 14,260 9,900 10,985
Other Production Billed 11,368 [} 5,733 26,216 0 19,175
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 203,668 189,782 204, 355 502,144 414,624 416,093
Advertising Expense 0 0 0 5,556 0 14,081
Stagehand Wages 124,944 138,251 133,115 319,405 300,252 256,052
Contracted Security Expense 34,655 24,618 18,712 82,620 60,236 65,073
Ushers & T/T Wages 6,622 7,693 11,091 13,247 17,092 18,013
Ticket Sellers Wages 883 5,900 1,099 1,931 14,000 2,179
Ticket Service Charge Expense 1,816 3,717 4,705 3,556 8,478 8,699
City Police Fire Expense 1,204 0 2,596 3,733 0 4,763
EMT Medical Expense 1,860 2,825 2,614 6,156 7,000 5,102
Cleaning Wages 7,112 0 2,418 7,112 0 2,418
Contracted Cleaning Expense 45,066 38,789 33,761 117,939 94,821 85,276
Insurance Expense 200 0 336 1,244 0 2,118
Group Sales Commissions [] 0 67 0 0 207
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,896 0 1,205 3,565 0 2,746
Production Expense 10,205 0 3,885 25,175 0 17,351
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 236,464 221,793 215,604 591,238 501,879 474,079

NET SERVICE INCOME <32,796> <32,011> <11,249> <89,094> <87,255> <57,985>




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended October 31, 2007

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 74 71 83,405 92,700 893,166 872,141
Consumer/Gated Shows 7 10 5,844 10,700 39,991 47,772
Devos Performance Hall 27 32 24,153 34,150 131,647 146,161
Ballroom Exclusive 15 23 8,100 14,600 69,127 125,990
Other 65 71 13,992 17,895 145,160 116,678
GRAND TOTALS 188 207 135,494 170,045 1,279,091 1,308,742
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 39.36% 34.30% 61.56% 54.51% 69.83% 66.64%
Consumer/Gated Shows 3.72% 4.83% 4.31% 6.29% 3.13% 3.65%
Devos Performance Hall 14.36% 15.46% 17.83% 20.08% 10.29% 11.17%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.98% 11.11% 5.98% 8.59% 5.40% 9.63%
Other 34.57% 34.30% 10.33% 10.52% 11.35% 8.92%



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Statement of Financial Position
For Month Ended October 31, 2007

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED DEPOSITS
REFUND LIABILITY
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH
FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

688,810
986,085
149,480
1,824,376

1,824,376

246,540
377,907
114,400
306,065

9,716

367,106

1,421,734

(100,000)
375,329
(255,418)

__ ;i

40642

1,824,376



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended October 31, 2007

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

72,294
280,481
51,834
20,730
463,437

45,961

36,214

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

986,085



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

----------------- CURRENT-----~==mosmmmemus —commooeccemcomaeaeYTDomemmmmmmmmmm e oo

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Adminisgtration 71,710 75,069 68,167 281,411 300,276 279, 045
Part-Time 15,501 13,167 13,675 31,841 52,668 28, 335
Wages-Trade 151,392 121,023 157,987 454,272 484,092 400, 616
Sales Commissions Group Sales 0 ) [} 67 0 0 67
Auto Allowance 2,121 2,271 2,121 8,483 9,084 8,483
Auto Expense 150 0 150 600 0 600
Taxes & Benefits 60,502 52,468 52,065 203,534 209,872 166,420
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <151,965> <113,125> <163,819> <419,130> <452,500> <354, 791>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 149,411 150,873 130,412 561,010 603,492 528,775
Contracted Security 22,733 21,000 20,147 96,717 84,000 82, 316
Contracted Cleaning 1,507 4] 1,886 8,260 0 12,634
Other Contracted Services 191 200 186 760 800 893
Travel & Entertainment 2,944 1,209 1,291 7,654 4,836 3,873
Corporate Travel 0 417 0 0 1,668 0
Meetings & Conventions 2,700 1,958 2,361 6,683 9,332 9,595
Dues & Subscriptions 1,175 300 690 3,609 1,200 2,521
Employee Training 0 833 375 674 3,332 7,082
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 90 0 0 90
Computer Expense <2,714> 6,250 2,440 19,850 25,000 21,309
Professional Fees 2,250 3,042 3,062 9,000 ’ 12,168 12,118
Marketing & Advertising 192 6,800 1,357 15,825 27,200 15,630
Box Office Expenses <18> 0 79 <54> 0 43
Trash Removal 2,448 2,500 4,783 6,734 10,000 9,088
Equipment Rental 2,025 1,000 1,475 5,280 4,000 5,299
Landscaping 1,062 833 937 4,247 3,332 5,161
Exterminating 1,053 1,000 20,034 25,126 26,220 23,104
Cleaning <5,250> 0 0 0 12,000 4,500
Repairs & Maintenance 62,104 39,792 34,942 199,607 159,168 117,458
Supplies 21,580 24,583 15,545 63,521 98,332 94,258
Bank Service Charges 1,889 1,500 1,690 6,278 6,000 4,885
Insurance 21,283 22,187 21,896 72,624 88,748 68, 050
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 0 0 138
Printing & Stationary 0 417 414 0 1,668 648
Office Supplies 496 750 497 3,936 3,000 3,777
Postage 678 417 518 1,524 1,668 1,628
Parking Expense 2,412 1,500 50 9,487 6,000 6,378
Telephone Long Distance 7,509 6,000 7,265 29,579 24,000 29,344
Utilities 130,000 128,400 121,074 375,330 354,700 345,823
Base Fee 12,838 12,775 12,500 51,350 51,100 50,000
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,934> <1,833> <1,205> <3,603> <7,332> <2,746>
TOTAI: MATERIAL AND SERVICES 291,152 283,830 276,378 1,019,998 1,012,140 934,895
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 440,563 434,703 406,789 1,581,008 1,615,632 1,463,670

¢



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,397,069 (523,675) 873,394 1,238,267
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,397,069 (523,675) 173,394 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,173,087 4,830,051 10,003,138 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 523,087 780,051 1,303,138 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 154,050 154,050 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 307,350 307,350 613,200 600,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2008

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 19 92 111 116 (5)
ATTENDANCE 101,126 562,122 663,248 666,500 (3,252)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 262,181 912,619 1,174,800 1,183,930 (9,130)
ANCILLARY INCOME 326,764 1,213,505 1,540,269 1,567,304 (27,035)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 588,945 2,126,124 2,715,069 2,751,234 (36,165)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 772,607 1,685,411 2,458,018 2,395,000 63,018
TOTAL INCOME 1,361,552 3,811,535 5,173,087 5,146,234 26,853
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 52,016 94,482 146,498 146,498 -
FINANCE 60,072 144,202 204,274 204,274 -
MARKETING 86,413 195,738 282,151 282,151 -
OPERATIONS 476,176 1,011,407 1,487,583 1,487,583 -
BOX OFFICE 45,322 74,291 119,613 119,613 -
LUXURY SEATING 34,770 82,528 117,298 117,298 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 12,652 27,204 39,856 39,856 -
OVERHEAD 392,701 986,044 1,378,745 1,378,745 -

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 1,160,121 2,615,896 3,776,018 3,776,018 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 201,431 1,195,639 1,397,069 1,370,216 26,853
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 153,300 153,300 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 201,431 1,195,639 1,243,769 1,216,916 26,853
Comments:

October saw the Arena host the 12th consecutive opening night sell-out for the
Grand Rapids Griffins as they got their season going. Attendance for the Griffins Genergl Manager
started ahead of last season, a trend that hopefully will continue throughout the
season.

Overall the facility performed very consistent with the budget as WWE and Pistons sales
were strong offsetting lower than expected sales for John Mellencamp.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007

The following schedule summarizes operating resuits for the current month ending September 30, 2007
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH October October October

Actual Budget FY 2007
Number of Events 6 6 19
Attendance 34,978 38,000 70,014
Direct Event Income $80,342 $74,114 $43,024
Ancillary Income 126,242 124,029 172,482
Other Income 189,589 199,583 197,749
Indirect Expenses (316,682) (319,044) (342,334)
Net Income $79,491 $78,682 $70,920
YTD YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 19 23 31
Attendance 101,126 115,000 119,526
Direct Event Income $262,181 $251,536 $273,574
Ancillary Income 326,764 362,396 330,871
Other Income 772,607 798,332 741,519
Indirect Expenses (1,160,121) (1,191,176) (1,128,006)
Net Income $201,431 $221,088 $217,958

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in a little ahead of budget for the month due to strong sales for both the WWE Raw and the

Detroit Pistons preseason game.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in consistent with budget for the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in consistent with the budget.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

----------------- CURRENT - == === === === === oo== mmeemmccccmceeaeYTDmmmmwmmmmommmee
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 106,951 124,200 199,821 343,191 389,200 431,760
SERVICES INCOME <26,609> <50, 086> <156,797> <81,010> <137,664> <158,186>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 80,342 74,114 43,024 262,181 251,536 273,574
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 103,023 103,009 156, 056 272,009 289,976 284,969
NOVELTY 13,308 19,210 11,806 44,845 70,210 42,402
OTHER ANCILLARY 9,910 1,810 4,620 9,910 2,210 3,500
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 126,242 124,029 172,482 326,764 362,396 330,871
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 206,584 198,143 215,506 588,945 613,932 604,445
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 189,589 199,583 197,749 772,607 798,332 741,519
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 396,172 397,726 413,254 1,361,552 1,412,264 1,345,964
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 14,284 12,083 13,642 52,016 48,332 48,538
FINANCE 16,160 16,898 13,883 60,072 67,592 60,431
MARKETING 27,466 23,388 55,737 86,413 93,552 109,856
LUXURY SEATING 9,353 9,775 9,555 34,770 39,100 25,174
OPERATIONS 110,945 123,714 137,349 476,176 494,856 488,762
BOX OFFICE 12,565 9,968 9,650 45,322 39,872 44,089
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 4,113 3,322 3,090 12,652 13,288 11,604
OVERHEAD 121,796 119,896 99,428 392,701 394,584 339,551
INDIRECT EXPENSES 316,682 319,044 342,334 1,160,121 1,191,176 1,128,006
NET OPERATING INCOME 79,491 78,682 70,920 201,431 221,088 217,958
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 79,491 78,682 70,920 201,431 221,088 217,958




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

---------------- CURRENT-------==-----vc-c- e-cec---------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 34,051 26,000 36,843 88,959 26,000 67,288
Sponsorship Income 0 0 99,093 0 0 99,093
Labor Billed 747 540 1,800 4,247 2,700 4,700
Changeover Setup .Billed 4,764 3,300 9,834 34,790 16,500 18,598
Stagehands Billed 63,151 28,100 42,435 201,267 96,100 97,615
Security Billed 4,473 6,000 9,451 38,530 30,000 31,200
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 2,716 4,400 7,371 22,544 18,680 21,741
Box Office Billed 0 400 387 387 2,000 1,511
Ticketing Service Billed 7,594 12,700 12,837 28,273 57,500 19,010
Utilities Billed 4,800 0 0 5,000 0 0
City Police Fire Billed 770 336 700 2,590 1,680 1,400
EMT Medical Billed 665 600 550 3,693 3,000 2,975
Cleaning Billed 3,801 3,600 11,532 24,985 18,000 28,846
Group Sales Commissions Billed 1,828 0 1,681 4,135 0 2,500
Telephone Billed 6,360 3,675 4,230 8,660 7,425 7,705
Other Production Billed 18,008 7,300 27,672 55,208 36,500 64,937
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 153,727 96,951 266,415 523,266 316,085 469,116
Advertising Expense 30,906 26,000 52,842 87,505 26,000 84,349
Labor Wages 635 459 1,530 3,610 2,295 3,995
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 16,363 15,550 26,580 49,823 44,050 42,122
Stagehand Wages 58,504 27,673 61,309 199,763 103,361 114,526
Contracted Security Expense 14,747 21,300 41,231 72,005 67,800 64,874
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 12,644 17,000 36,664 43,417 49,820 52,207
Ticket Sellers Wages ] 0 329 329 0 1,468
Ticket Service Charge Expense 6,642 11,680 12,082 27,123 57,160 18,144
City Police Fire Expense 438 336 1,046 1,846 2,430 1,883
EMT Medical Expense 2,006 2,272 525 5,126 6,409 2,894
Contracted Cleaning Expense 10,795 16,573 33,783 52,143 53,264 49,777
Group Sales Commissions 1,047 1] 1,357 1,792 0 2,235
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,668 894 1,269 2,478 2,660 2,312
Production Expense 23,941 7,300 152,665 57,316 38,500 186,518
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 180,336 147,037 423,212 604,276 453,749 627,303

NET SERVICE INCOME <26,609> <50,086> <156,797> <81,010> <137,664> <158,186>

=meass=s=pz==x ==== === ===s=osc=s==c==ox Ses=szocoznox SISSTSsS=sS=Sc SSRSISSSES



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending October 31, 2007

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days
Actual Budget
8 12
3 2
5 5
3 3
- 1
19 23

42.11% 52.17%

15.79% 8.70%

26.32% 21.74%

15.79% 13.04%

0.00% 4.35%

Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget

32,735 41,000 130,511 136,600

19,834 15,000 142,992 99,851

36,185 40,000 273,456 338,133

12,372 15,000 40,510 30,666

- 4,000 1,325 8,682

101,126 115,000 588,794 613,932
32.37% 35.65% 22.17% 22.25%
19.61% 13.04% 24.29% 16.26%
35.78% 34.78% 46.44% 55.08%
12.23% 13.04% 6.88% 5.00%
0.00% 3.48% 0.23% 1.41%



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending October 31, 2007

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable

183,934
263,148
3,240
297,888
57,976

165,874

34,570

29,652

1,036,282



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending October 31, 2007

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

4,117,345
1,036,282

124,114

549,689
277,488
2,084,677
2,347,883

(1,100,000)
237,927
201,431
678,645

5,277,740

5,277,740

5,259,737

18,003

5,277,740




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/07

----------------- CURRENT - - = - = = - e e oo e YTD-mmmmmmmmm e

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 61,515 63,488 54,265 241,661 253,952 230, 382
Part-Time 6,873 5,833 7,626 21,573 23,332 17,654
Wages-Trade 85,350 69,903 90,984 301,246 279,612 242,311
Sales Commissions Group Sales 543 0 [4] 2,310 0 4,316
Auto Allowance 594 985 594 2,375 3,940 2,375
Auto Expense 300 0 300 1,200 0 1,200
Taxes & Benefits 31,920 40,100 37,437 123,735 160,400 128,819
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <74,848> <59,022> <79,266> <262,999> <236,088> <186, 962>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 112,247 121,287 111, 940 431,100 485,148 440,095
Contracted Security 7,682 21,000 18,227 71,858 84,000 79,904
Contracted Cleaning 2,325 2,500 2,418 10,056 10,000 10, 212
Other Contracted Services 5,221 300 3,185 35,381 1,200 13,601
Travel & Entertainment 3,469 858 1,997 6,340 3,432 5,863
Corporate Travel 0 625 ] ] 2,500 0
Meetings & Conventions 278 350 1,159 278 1,400 1,558
Dues & Subscriptions 1,485 208 423 2,547 832 1,675
Employee Training ] 750 0 0 3,000 1,808
Computer Expense 2,462 5,417 5,503 17,375 21,668 19,765
Professional Fees 2,250 2,583 2,778 9,000 10,332 10, 060
Marketing & Advertising 14,746 12,083 44,554 37,515 48,332 57,791
Box Office Expenses 686 0 <985> <244> 0 <1,411>
Trash Removal 2,646 1,500 2,111 6,022 6,000 5,275
Equipment Rental 949 1,250 1,207 4,380 5,000 5,098
Landscaping 345 483 499 1,380 1,932 2,123
Exterminating 248 300 248 990 1,200 945
Cleaning 0 900 0 7,825 3,600 2,650
Repairs & Maintenance 29,806 16,166 18,416 107,159 64,664 66,804
Supplies 16,910 17,008 36,388 63,774 68,032 86,345
Bank Service Charges 935 750 415 2,120 3,000 1,325
Insurance 10,708 15,037 18,693 30,159 60,148 42,782
Printing & Stationary 0 917 771 657 3,668 1,772
Office Supplies 307 1,000 4,610 3,859 4,000 5,562
Postage 223 1,000 57 3,495 4,000 3,764
Parking Expense 2,658 2,000 2,538 10,654 8,000 9,938
Telephone Long Distance 4,838 7,000 3,029 19,893 28,000 19,083
Utilities 85,737 76,317 53,661 237,928 220,268 196,220
Bage Fee 12,838 12,775 12,500 51,350 51,100 50,000
Letter of Credit Fee 0 4} 0 394 0 0
Common Area Expense <3,647> <2,945> <2,740> <11,219> <11,780> <10,290>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,668> <375> <1,269> <2,478> <1,500> <2,312>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 204,434 197,757 230,394 728,444 706,028 687,911
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 316,682 319,044 342,334 1,159,544 1,191,176 1,128,006

q



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2008

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

r

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2007
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,397,069 (523,675) 873,394 1,238,267
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,397,069 (523,675) 173,394 538,267

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 153,300 153,300 306,600 300,000
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,173,087 4,830,051 10,003,138 10,411,774

Benchmark Revenue 4,650,000 4,050,000 8,700,000 8,600,000

Revenue Excess 523,087 780,051 1,303,138 1,811,774

Incentive Fee ** 154,050 154,050 306,600 300,000
Total SMG Management Fee 307,350 307,350 613,200 600,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.b.2

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
B i i i
e e e e S i S e e
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FATILITIES

Memorandum
To: Members of the CAA Finance Committee
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: November 8, 2007
Convention Re: CAA Financial Statements
Arena
Authority
The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
Steven Heacock, October 31, 2007:
Chairman
zil'_?‘é:b:“ 1050: Operations ~ 1070: Kent County Operating
z"'y M:"e”:ye" Beginning Balance $305,911.28 $20,447,715.05
P Cleared Transactions 292,941.76 88.478.31
Leprhamber“n Cleared Balance 598,853.04 20,536,188.36
Uncleared Transactions  320,255.24 0.00
Ending Balance $278.597.80 $20,536,188.36

o The SMG special purpose financial statements were accepted by the CAA Board
at its October 24% meeting, and the FY 2007 incentive fee of $300,000 has been
paid. The original amount budgeted for the incentive fee was $257,696.

e The line item, Other Contractual Services (6060), includes appropriations for the
West Michigan Sports Commission in the amount of $25,000 and to the CVB for
$75,000. These amounts will be expended once contracts with these organizations
have been finalized and the terms of the agreements have been satisfied.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at
742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.

i

VAN ANDEL

e DEVOSPLACE

Van Andel Arena® DeVos Place®
130 Fulton West 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590




Item IV.b.ii.

10:56 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
11/06/07 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2007
Oct 31, 07
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 4,068,974.10
1050 - Operations - Cash 278,597.80
Total Checking/Savings 4,347,571.90
Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating 20,536,188.36
1200 - Accounts Receivable 1,420,074.17
1300 - Prepaid Expenses 161,220.35
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable -1,200,000.07
Totat Other Current Assets 20,917,482.81
Total Current Assets 25,265,054.71
Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Depreciation -41,778.69
Original Cost 322,431.00
Total Buildings & Structures 280,652.31
Equip
Depreciation -589,296.08
Original Cost 969,236.60
Total Equip 379,940.52
Vehicles 43,914.30
Total Fixed Assets 704,507.13
TOTAL ASSETS 25,969,561.84
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 - Accounts Payable 99,223.51

2005 - Accounts payable - SMG 598,094.17

Total Accounts Payable 697,317.68
Other Current Liabilities

2200 - Accrued Expenses 877,731.86

2210 - Advance Ticket Sales 1,993,226.73

2220 - Advance deposits 291,205.00

2500 - Deferred facility income 906,555.74

Total Other Current Liabilities 4,068,719.33

Total Current Liabilities 4,766,037.01

Total Liabilities 4,766,037.01

Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,035,584.45

3900 - Retained Earnings -14,930,471.70

Net Income -901,587.92

Total Equity 21,203,524.83

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 25,969,561.84




2:32PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11/07/07
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6500 - DID Assessment

6600 - SMG Incentive Fees

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through October 2007

Jul - Oct 07 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
181,275.69 166,666.66 14,609.03 108.8%
54,317.20 42,136.00 12,181.20 128.9%
178,378.00 287,637.32 -109,259.32 62.0%
413,970.89 496,439.98 -82,469.09 83.4%
4,017.94 10,000.00 -5,982.06 40.2%
2,263.00 11,666.64 -9,403.64 19.4%
6,280.94 21,666.64 -15,385.70 29.0%
11,872.75 53,166.64 -41,293.89 22.3%
12,834.26 30,000.00 -17,165.74 42.8%
53,222.43 121,747.64 -68,525.21 43.7%
472.09
20,258.00 21,000.00 -742.00 96.5%
115.92 3,333.32 -3,217.40 3.5%
260.95 1,666.64 -1,405.69 16.7%
21,106.96 25,999.96 -4,893.00 81.2%
299,481.89 229,666.64 69,815.25 130.4%
7,068.53 11,666.64 -4,598.11 60.6%
417,764.55 410,666.64 7,097.91 101.7%
1,923.97 6,000.00 -4,076.03 32.1%
98,801.29 151,000.00 -52,198.71 65.4%
47,622.29 37,500.00 10,122.29 127.0%
566,112.10 605,166.64 -39,054.54 93.5%
0.00 17,023.64 -17,023.64 0.0%
300,000.00 102,200.00 197,800.00 293.5%
29,744.33 28,522.32 1,222.01 104.3%
7,834.62 6,505.00 1,329.62 120.4%
37,578.95 35,027.32 2,651.63 107.3%
1,315,558.81 1,253,331.76 62,227.05 105.0%
-901,587.92 -756,891.78 -144,696.14 119.1%




2:31 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11/07/07
Accrual Basis

Income
4040 - Private Support
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues

Total Income

Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies
6140 - Printing and Binding

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6600 - SMG Incentive Fees

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 : Employee Benefits

Tota! 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

July through October 2007

Jul - Oct 07 Jul - Oct 06 $ Change % Change
0.00 -90,872.66 90,872.66 100.0%
181,275.69 306,970.24 -125,694.55 -41.0%
54,317.20 34,566.00 19,751.20 57.1%
178,378.00 169,610.76 8,767.25 5.2%
413,970.89 420,274.33 -6,303.44 -1.5%
4,017.94 14,002.32 -9,984.38 -71.3%
2,263.00 14,585.02 -12,322.02 -84.5%
6,280.94 28,587.34 -22,306.40 -78.0%
11,872.75 1,500.00 10,372.75 691.5%
12,834.26 0.00 12,834.26 100.0%
63,222.43 64,959.00 -11,736.57 -18.1%
472.09 9.00 463.09 5,145.4%
20,258.00 19,196.86 1,061.14 5.5%
116.92 49.48 66.44 134.3%
260.95 1,241.42 -980.47 -79.0%
0.00 4,470.00 -4,470.00 -100.0%
21,106.96 24,966.76 -3,859.80 -15.5%
299,481.89 592,683.56 -293,201.67 -49.5%
7,068.53 20,648.42 -13,579.89 -65.8%
417,764.55 330,785.54 86,979.01 26.3%
1,923.97 2,047.24 -123.27 -6.0%
98,801.29 144,970.57 -46,169.28 -31.9%
47,622.29 30,836.05 16,786.24 54.4%
566,112.10 508,639.40 57,472.70 11.3%
300,000.00 229,259.00 70,741.00 30.9%
29,744.33 25,764.87 3,979.46 16.5%
7.834.62 7,245.28 589.34 8.1%
37,578.95 33,010.15 4,568.80 13.8%
1,315,558.81 1,504,253.63 -188,694.82 -12.5%
-801,587.92 -1,083,979.30 182,391.38 16.8%




BDO Seidman, LLP
A Accountants and Consultants

October 26, 2007

Board of Directors

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

300 Monroe Avenue NW

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Dear Members of the Board:

99 Monroe Avenue NW, Suite 800
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2654
Telephone: (616) 774-7000

Fax: (616) 776-3680

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (the Authority) for the year ended June 30, 2007 and have
issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2007. Professional standards require that we

provide you with the following information related to our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management

of the Authority and should not be used for any other purpose.

Very truly yours,



rand Rapids -
onvention/Are

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2007



Grand Rapids - Kent ¢
Convention/Arena Auf

Report to the Board of I;)

Our Responsibility Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

Our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express an opinion on the basic
financial statements of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the
Authority) based on our audit. In carrying out this responsibility, we assessed the risk that the
financial statements may contain a material misstatement, either intentional or unintentional, and
designed and conducted our audit to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of detecting
misstatements that are material to the financial statements. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a
risk that material errors, fraud or illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of the Authority’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. While our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no
transactions entered into by the Authority during the year that were both significant and unusual,
and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.




Grand Rapids - Kent
Convention/Arena Autl

Report to the Board of

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based upon management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. Our audit
procedures included inquiries about, and a review of, significant management judgments and
accounting estimates.

Significant Audit Adjustment

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a
proposed correction of the basic financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been
detected except through our auditing procedures. These adjustments may include those proposed
by us but not recorded by the Authority that could potentially cause future financial statements to
be materially misstated, even though we have concluded that such adjustments are not material to
the current financial statements.

During our audit, we noted the following significant audit adjustment:

Item # Account Name and Adjustment Description Debit Credit
1 Investments $ 84,475
Investment Income $ 84,475

To record investment income earned in June 2007 on the
investments with Kent County but not credited to the
account until July 2007.

Disagreements With Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting
or auditing matter that could be significant to the basic financial statements or the auditors’
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.




Grand Rapids - Kent
Convention/Arena Auth@ it

Report to the Board of

Consultation With Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s basic
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed With Management Prior to Recurring Retention
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors.

~ However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Alternative Accounting Treatments Discussed With Management

During the past year, there were no significant transactions that required a discussion with
management as to alternative accounting treatments.

Difficulties Encountered With Management in Performing the Audit
We are pleased to inform you that there were no significant delays encountered during the course

of the audit. All records and information requested by BDO Seidman were freely available for
inspection. Management and other personnel provided full cooperation.

Independence

We are not aware of any relationships between BDO Seidman and the Grand Rapids - Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Melnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

2B

Van Andel Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

Item IV.b.iv.

e R R e S s et e ™
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: Members of the CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White, Director
Kent County Fiscal Services Department
Date: November 8, 2007
Re: Convention/Arena Authority

Analysis of Current Financial Position

The attached two-page report provides a summary (cliff notes) of the financial position of
the Convention/Arena Authority. The summary includes a recitation of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (Unrestricted) for the year ended June 30, 2006 (FY
2006), comparable status at intervals for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2007 (FY 2007),
and the current status of the Fiscal Year 2008 budget. The term “Net Assets
(Unrestricted)” excludes capital assets which are not deemed available to support ongoing
operations.

The FY 2007 budget, as amended, provides for the addition of $.74 million to Net Assets
(Unrestricted). This “addition” may be enhanced by additional revenue increases (over
current budget estimates) in the categories of Facilities — SMG, Parking, and Investment
Income. The current year (FY 2008) capital budget includes a one-time Fiscal Year 2007
capital carryover appropriation of $194,216.

It would appear that the Convention/Arena Authority should be able to maintain its “Net
Assets (Unrestricted)” balance for the next several years. A long-range capital
repair/replacement forecast suggested a need to substantially increase funding in Fiscal
Year 2012 and thereafter. A long-range capital repair/replacement forecast will be
updated as a part of the Fiscal Year 2009 budget cycle.

Attachments:
e Consolidated Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Assets (Unrestricted)
¢ Administration Expenses - Detail

DeVos Pla
303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233
616.742.6500

Fax 616.742.6590




“W9ISAS XLIJEW PIE0GII0ds VA U} 10§ 91ZCS 1$ pue susaios [oued 1e[j 105 000°THS Surpnpul 917461$ JO A0L1re) Tended £00T Ad SSP[U]
“gpuady S9NIUIOY) 30UBUL] £00T ‘L1 KN 39S (;

oLY'or1TT $

989°VEETT §

€€6°66€°1T $

9p1¥°890°0T $

185°689°81 §

SSEPr80T §

1$3)ON

AX Jo puy (pajoLsau()) s)assy N

€€6°66€°1C €€6°66€°1C SSEYr8°0T SSEYPR0T SSEvP8°0T 112°TLS 1T 1X Jo Sag (pajornsaaup)) s)3ssy IdON
LESOVL €SLVE6 8L5°SSS (606°SLL) (PLL‘SSTD) (9s8°LTL)
o (917°€88) (000°689) (0SL°TEET) (L86°LTLD) (0€TSLT’E) (£98°€8S°T) 190y [ende) mouy (03) JojsueL],
000°000°T 000°000°T S08°690°1 000°986 000°008 €61veEL SNOIUB[[IISTIA/AWOIU] JUSUWIISIAUT
$ONUIAY [euoneIdd(-uoN
€GL°€T9 €SL°ETI €TSL1S 8L0°996 95¥°91¢ 818121 (ssor7) smoduy SuneradQ
OvZ EVE 0T OvTEVE0T SPSSYLOT 91L‘SLO°0T ov6¥1Z°01 €61°6L1°01
000°06 00006 18L°€8 000°S8 000°08 €6LY8 Ayayeg ueInsapad
€YTS9¢ €PTS9¢ 968°8¥¢€ 188°9¢€ TET'LEE L6TTIE Bunyred
€59°16Y €S9°1SY TSO°T1E GGL9TE 6TS6LT TST°LST UONeNSIUTWIPY
- - T1EY9€ - - 6L6TS syuswese[day/redsy Jofejn
00Z°€19 00Z°€19 000009 000°009 969°LSS 6S9°61L 93] JUsWAFeUBN
r1°c78°8 vr1°€78°8 S0S°LE0°6 080°LTL’S €8+°096°S €1€°082°8 suoneiadQ Anroe;]
:sasuadxy SuneradQ
€66°996°01 £66°996°01 890°€9S°T1 6L Y011 96€°1EY°01 110°10€°01
07£°686 02£°686 LTIYTO°1 YS1v66 991°688 v65°926 Bupyred
CLOLL66 $  ELOLL66 §  IP6BESOL §  OVO’LPO'OT §  OETTYS'6 $  LIV'YLE6 § DIAS - sanIIoe]
:sanuaAdY SunerddQ
1o3png yo3png wpny PreumsT 1o3png npny o)
papusmy paydopy [euly 9007 Ad
8007 XA L00T Ad

(pojdLI)SaTU() ) §19SSY JON Ul
saSuey)) pue sasuadx7 ‘SINUIAIY JO JUSWI)IE}S PIjepIosuo))

fuoyny vudly/uonuaAuo) Auno)) jusy-spidey puern



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administration Expenses - Detail

FY 2007

FY 2006 Final { FY 2008

Line Item Audit Budget Estimate Audit Budggt
Wages 33,142 $ 58,803 $ 83,803 $ 69,647 $ 85,567
Benefits 18,841 21,067 19,794 21,527 19,515
Accounting/Audit 83,303 26,000 28,162 27,730 30,000
Legal Services 35,769 30,000 30,000 24,242 35,000
DID Assessment 47,034 49,659 50,299 50,299 51,071
Insurance 16,730 20,000 19,197 19,197 21,000

Marketing

-CVB - 50,000 - - 75,000
- Sports Commission - - - - 25,000
Repairs - F&B - - 55,000 52,993 35,000
Diversity Initiative - - 16,500 16,146 22,000
Other 16,823 10,000 10,000 16,648 37,500
Meeting/Supplies/Misc. 5,510 14,000 14,000 12,623 15,000
257,152 $ 279,529 $ 326,755 $ 311,052 $ 451,653

M Downtown Improvement District special assessment contribution from CAA based on benefit allocation formula.

m



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Kiohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Van Andel Arena®

J— Item IV.b.v.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

m

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: Members of the CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White, Director
Kent County Fiscal Services Department
Date: November 8, 2007
Re: Investment Policy - Benchmarking

At the last Finance Committee meeting, held on October 18th, discussion took place
concerning the current investment policy and performance of the County Treasurer’s
investment pool. Additional detail was requested, including a history of interest earning
rates in the pooled account and identification of a “benchmark” to measure performance
of the fund. The attached table provides a history of interest earning rates for the County
Treasurer’s pooled investment account compared to month-end US Treasury rates. Given
the practice of the County Treasurer, to generally invest in 12-month laddered certificates
of deposit, you can easily discern a lagging interest earnings rate in a rising interest rate
market with an over-performing interest rate yield in a declining interest rate environment.

Depository accounts of the Convention/Arena Authority include those funds currently on
deposit in the County Treasurer’s pooled investment account, a checking account
maintained by the Convention/Arena Authority, and various depository accounts
maintained by the SMG management office. Book balances and interest yield(s) at
September 30", for each of these accounts, is noted as follows:

e Pooled investment account - $20,447,715; yield 5.09%
o CAA checking - $281,398; yield 3.922%
e SMG facilities management - $4,413,136; yield 2.307%-4.65%

As a follow-up to discussions held at the October 18" meeting of the Finance Committee,
staff will be working, over the next several months, on an updated long-term capital plan
(10 years). This study will be incorporated into preparation of the Fiscal Year 2009 (year
beginning July 1, 2008) budget. In the interim, staff will continue to monitor the yield
curve for investments for the purpose of ascertaining if the Authority might achieve a
higher rate of return by increasing the term of its investments while maintaining flexibility
to address operating and capital ne:=ds over the course of the next several fiscal years.

DeVos Placee

130 Fulton West 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6500
616.742.6590

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Investments in Kent County Pooled Account
Actual Return Compared in US Treasury Rate
November 2004 to Present

US Treasury County Pooled Positive Margin

Mo./Year 1 Year Account Rate (Shortfall)
9/07 4.23 5.09 0.86
8/07 441 5.09 0.68
7/07 5.01 5.10 0.09
6/07 4.93 5.07 0.14
5/07 4.85 5.05 0.20
4/07 4.97 5.12 0.15
3/07 4.93 5.06 0.13
2/07 5.04 5.08 0.04
1/07 5.06 5.08 0.02

12/06 4.96 5.08 0.12
11/06 5.04 5.02 (0.02)
10/06 5.05 5.00 (0.05)
9/06 5.03 4.95 (0.08)
8/06 5.11 4.85 (0.26)
7/06 5.24 4.68 (0.56)
6/06 5.15 4.56 (0.59)
5/06 5.01 4.45 (0.56)
4/06 4.93 4.32 0.61)
3/06 4.77 4.18 (0.59)
2/06 4.70 3.99 0.71)
1/06 4.42 3.85 (0.57)
12/05 4.33 3.70 (0.63)
11/05 4.38 3.57 0.81)
10/05 4.21 3.52 (0.69)
9/05 3.81 3.39 (0.42)
8/05 3.91 3.23 (0.68)
7/05 3.61 3.10 (0.51)
6/05 3.39 3.00 (0.39)
5/05 3.33 2.87 (0.46)
4/05 3.26 2.76 (0.50)
3/05 3.32 2.64 (0.68)
2/05 3.03 2.50 (0.53)
1/05 2.90 2.36 (0.54)
12/04 2.64 224 (0.40)

11/04 2.53 2.12 0.41)



VAN ANDEL ARENA

FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE & COMMISSIONS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007

MONTH

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Huntington Club Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

YEAR TO DATE

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Huntington Club Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

Item IV.b.vi.

MONTHLY EVENTS - PER CAP COMPARISON

WWE/SMGFB

Detroit Pistons/SMGFB

John Mellencamp/Centerplate
Griffins Games 1-3/SMGFB

October October October
Actual Budget F/Y 2007
195,541 207,500 315,152
(91,904) (97,525) (148,121)
9,621) (15,750) (19,993)
94,016 94,225 147,038
47,873 56,300 69,492
(37,983) (44,882) (55,941)
(880) (2,634) (2,525)
9,010 8,784 11,026
3,841 - -
(2,689) - -
(144)
1,008 - -
104,034 103,009 158,064
(1,155) (864)
102,879 103,009 157,200
YTD 2008 YTD 2008 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
493,403 527,500 530,928
(231,899) (247,925) (249,536)
9,621) (15,750) (19,993)
251,883 263,825 261,399
106,737 139,000 135,228
(85,369) (110,215) (105,619)
(880) (2,634) (2,525)
20,488 26,151 27,084
7,828 - -
(5,480) - -
(144)
2,204 - -
274,575 289,976 288,483
(2,711) (1,505)
271,864 289,976 286,978
Previous Visit Current Year Percentage Change
$5.47 $5.19 -5.12%
$5.90 $5.39 -8.64%
$6.81 $7.73 13.51%
$5.20 $5.65 8.65%



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Nov 28 | Available
Thur, Nov 29 | Available
Fri, Nov 30 Available
Sat, Dec 1 Trans Siberian Orchestra RS | TODD Arena 5:00 AM Building access/Floor mark
6:00 AM Load-in
12:30 PM Chair set
1:45 PM Sound check
TBD Security meeting
2:00 PM Doors
3P-5:45P Performance #1
5:45P-7P Quick clean
7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:45P Performance #2
10:45 PM Load-out
DN Banquet All 6:30A-9:30P Backstage catering
Adam Earle Suite 101A 3P-6P Banquet
Jim and Amy Gawron 8P-11P Banquet
Compass Equipment Suite 101B 3P-6P Banquet
Gerber Products 8P-11P Banquet
Sun, Dec 2 Available
Mon, Dec 3 Available
Tue, Dec 4 Available
Wed, Dec 5 Griffins vs Lake Erie RS | STEVE Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Chemical Coaters Association DN E & W Nests 6P-9:30P Banquet
Barnes & Thomburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
DP Fox Ventures Talsma Terrace | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Dec 6 Hannah Montana GC | CHRIS Arena 5:00 AM Floor mark
6:00 AM Load-in
1:30 PM Chair set
5:00 PM Usher meeting
5:30 PM Doors
7P-7:30P Jonas Brothers
7:30P-8P Intermission
8P-9:15P Hannah Montana/Miley Cyrus
9:00 PM Load-out
Fri, Dec 7 Griffins vs Syracuse RS | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
5:30 PM Doors
6:30P-9P Hockey game
9P-11:30P Calvin v Hope hockey game
Hope College Alumni DN Banquet B 5:30P-6:30P Banquet
Wolverine World Wide E & W Nests 5:30P-9P Banquet
Sat, Dec 8 Grand Valley State University GC | LYNNE Arena 10:00 AM Commencement ceremony
Griffins vs Syracuse RS Arena 4P-5:30P Pre-game hockey game
7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Hockey game
10:30P-10:45P | Post-game autographs
10:45P-11:15P | Post-game skate
DN Banquet All 7P-8P Corbin Bleu meet-n-greet
Rosewood Elementary Choir East Nest 7P-11:15P Banquet
Lakeside Marine West Nest 7P-11:15P Banquet
Star Tickets Plus Suite 101A 7P-11:15P Banquet
Sun, Dec 9 SMG LI Arena 2P-5P Skating party
Mon, Dec 10 | Available
Tue, Dec 11 Available




Wed, Dec 12 | Griffins vs Hamilton GC | IM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Barnes & Thornburg DN Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Thur, Dec 13 | Huntington Bank DG Hunt Club 5:30P-10P Holiday party
Fri, Dec 14 Griffins vs Hamilton RS | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
West Side Beer Distributing DN East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
ServPro Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
West Side Beer Distributing North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Dec 15 Griffins vs Milwaukee GC | ROD Arena 4P-5:30P Pre-game hockey game
7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Hockey game
10:30P-10:45P | Post-game autographs
10:45P-11:15P | Post-game skate
DN Banquet all 6:30P-8P Nashville Star meet-n-greet
KDP Retirement Plan Services East/West Nests | 7P-11:15P Banquet
Sun, Dec 16 Available
Mon, Dec 17 | Available
Tue, Dec 18 Available
Wed, Dec 19 | Available
Thur, Dec 20 | Available
Fri, Dec 21 Griffins vs Rockford RS | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
DN West Nest 6P-9:30P Musical act
Sat, Dec 22 Griffins vs Chicago GC | CHRIS Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game autographs
10P-10:30P Post-game skate
Powell Relocation DN Suite 101A 6P-10:30P Banquet
Sun, Dec 23 Available
Mon, Dec 24 7y
Closed - SMG Holiday &
Tue, Dec 25 . &
Closed - Christmas Day
Wed, Dec 26 | Available
Thur, Dec 27 | Available
Fri, Dec 28 Available
Sat, Dec 29 Griffins vs Milwaukee RS | JIM Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Sun, Dec 30

Available




d-v woodljjeg = -V TIvd

[[eH 20ueuLIOLIdd SOA2d = AQ
OV SlieH ¥qiyxd = D~V HA

swooy Sunas 20MUoN =d-V NOW

4-V JOO[I2AQ 1oAY = J-V OY

valy A1J[eD puelD = DO

H-V swooy Sunasiy JooHsAO =H-V O
4-V swooy Sunssy A1s|[eD pueln = J-V D

ONILTZN YTV ONNOA WA00:6Nd00'8 v Oou
13NONVE ¥VLS ONISII S.IN Nd00:6-WOE'9 a8 TIve
NOLLJZOY YTV ONNOA NOE'S A€€0T VIHOOHS

NOISSNOSIA YTV ONNOA Nd00'S-Nd00'Y 400
dn1ds a<y 10d10dd W00+ NdOE T g Ha
JOHSRIOM TYNOILYONA WASPE- ST 400
NOLLVINSRIO 494 LOd[04d W00:Z-Nd0O: T gV 0
HONN'T99LLINNOD 3%d WVOETT gV D0
STVNIJ INGS SYTWVA ONNOA WAOE'T 40 0¥
‘SI'TEN S JTNUVA ONNOA | NVOE:TT-WVOE0T 4604
'SINI'TEI SMENAVA ONNOA | WVOEDI-NVOE6 4904
"ISIORY SUTNAVE ONNOK | IVOE0I-AV00'8 VoY
WOOY DNIJHRI€ SFOANS AVA TV €00
@IVMV OV NI SONTT130Xd AVA TIV 000
@IVAV FIA0TINE NIV AVA TV aoo
QIVMV ¥IdVET1DV AVA 1TV 300
WOOY INGWHATIHOV AVA TIV 409
NOOY YTV ONNOA AVA TV 409
NOOY NOILVYLSIOFY AVA 1TV HO0D
SONLLEAW “T4ASd AJIT0d AVA TV WOOU@IVOH
NOOY SSTUd AVATIV [ 901440 MOHS TIVE
NOISSES ALVDITad |  WVSKIINVOES v 1TV
HONN'TYINAVA ONNOA | NASPZIWVSH:IT a-€ TIve
LSVDIVEE OVANOY VS T:8-AV00:L Q-8 TIve
VIIELFHOLY T 33440 WA00-ZI-NV00:L AE€0THSTAM
NOLLVYLSIORY 31VDET4d WAOE:9-NVOE'9 A€€0T VIHOOHS
NV00:9

e T T
SQUVMY dHSIIENEN NJ00:01-WOE'9 a-gTIve
‘NLJHOFY SIOIAYES YIINIW NS T:9-NdST'S A€EO0T VIHOOHS
dn1ds IANONVE SQIVAY Nd00'9-NV00'8 a-g1Ive

NOILLVYLSIO=Y 51VOIT1dd WN00:9-NdSH'Y A€80TVIHOOHS

¥ANNIA “T9AEd AJIT0d WdSH'S

HONN “T8A3Q AJI10d WAOE'ZT
SILLIAWOD "THAS AJI'10d AVA TV NOOYQUVOH
dN1HS NOISSHS S1VOITad AV TIV v TIvE
WOOY SSTUd AVATIV [ 9D1440 MOHS TIVE

dnlas

LISIHXd SEOIAYES YFEWIN ONINMOW Ag807 VIHOOHS

dn1ds VI V00:6

— e

TYARNEV LNAI'IO

V008

L00C — A TIdAM
HIOVTESOAHEA




LO/6T/T1

d-v wooJed = -V 1Ivd
[1BH 2oueuLio} ad SOAJ = Ad
O-V S[leH ¥qiyxd = D-V HA

sSwooy Sunasy 201UoN =d-V NOW
d-V JOO[HRAQ JoATY = 1-V OY

eaIy A19[[en pueln = DO

H-V swooy SumnesA JOOo[I9AQ = H-V O
J-V swooy Sunes AI[[eo puRln = J-V O

AIANES AOO0d MOTO Y LIV
LSILONdAH

YINNIA

Ad807T VIHOOIS-4NOH TVIOO0S
TYATIIV LSILONdAH
NOILVYLSIOFT

dNlL3as vI

NdO0T:6
Wd0T:6-Nd0T:8
WdOT:L
Wd00:L-WNd00:9
Wd00:L-Nd0¢:9
Wd00:9-INd0t:S
Wd00:€
Wd00:1

HIONVINIOLAAd

Wd00:01-INdO¢:L

TIVH SOATd

0001 mOZ<QZm—.E.< “1S3

AvIdd

NOISSTS 41vOaT1dd
VRIdLHOLVTA 394103
JILLIANOD “"TIATA ADIT0d
NOOY SSTdd
NOILVYLSIOTY ILvOHITIA
LSV IIvaid

4<>§< HZNSO

WdO0t:0T-WV00:01
WdOE:TT-NVO0E'8
WdOETI-NV00:L
NdOE-TI-INV00:L
WdOETI-NV00-L
WdOETI-INVOE:9

WV00:8-NV00:L
WV00:9

Y 11vd
Adg0THSTIM
WOOod@Ivod
d01440 MOHS T1vd
Ad9€07T VIHOOdIS
a-d 1ive

5

S

NVIING WAV IN | 0¢£ AON Tdd

ooS mOZ<QZm.E.< 153

a TJlnrd>F\ e l. f-:\mn&.%.m.). Bt iy
TVSIVIHAA En_oo 0T-Wd00:-L
p:\4 dnigs Wd00:1-NV00:8 TIVH SOA3Id HVISSTN
J1ANONVE TYNNY WdO0E:6-NdSY 9 a-d71Ive
1NO avOTIA JO JLSVL Wd00-8-INd00-9
NVOIHOIN 40 JLSVL WdST:9-INdS1:S a-2 A9407 VIHOD3S
NI QvOTIA 40 1SVL Wd0t:€-Nd0¢:T
TVIOOS WVEID 301 Wd00-T-NdST°1
OLOHd d1vDATId ALNNOD WdST-T-WNd00-1 DO 1sIM
HONNT S.LNIJISTId WdOT T-NVSH: 11 a1ivd
NOISS3S 4LvDaT1ad Wd00:$-Nd00:T g4 T11vd
NOISSIS 41LvHIT1ad WO TT-NVER-8 v T1Ivd
1NO avoT1dadd Lo3f04dd WNdOE-€-Nd0E-T vV 1Tvd
SLIFIHXT a3y 1O3r0dd WdO0E:T-NV00:6 gHa
SAD A04 VIV DNIATOH Wd00:+~-NV00-8 V HY
ANOLLID F%d ALVLS Nd0¢:S-INd0E €
HONNTIILLINNOD 37%d WV00:11
NOLLVYLSIOFY dTA LOIrOUd VO£ gvo
JALLINWOD “TdAId AJITOd AVA 11V NO0IMIVOod
WOOY SSTUd AVATIV a-gT1ivd
LSvivadd WV00:6-INV00-L dI1440 MOHS T1vd
VIIZLIHOLV T 394403 Avd qq<.§<oo L AddOTHSTIM
NOLLVYLSION] 41vDIT3d : A49d07T VIHOO3S

D<m~5m IV IN

9 ‘IONVANITLLY 'LS3

N

TVARRIY LNAITO

1440 ATVMAMNS

SAIIVI ANVID 40 ALID

L00T — ATAHAM
HIOVTESOAHA



LO/6T/11

d-v woorjjed = d-V 1T1vd
[[eH 2oueuULIONSd SOAST = AQ
OV SlieH MqIyxg = D-V HA

Swooy SumasN 201U =(-V NOW

J-V YOO[I9AQ) 1Ay = J-V OY
BAIY AId[[ED pURID = DD

H-V swooy Sunasy JoOo[19AQ = H-V O
J-V swooy] Sunsepy A1s|[eD puein = J-V O

oomm ”mUZ<QZm.—._.< 153

dASVOMOHS d1ddV WdOE:S-INdOE Y

'SOLA TVNNNY DAN 2 SHSW WdST-v
SNOISS3IS Wd00-5-Nd00-T

SNOISSIS Wd00:$-INd00:T

SNOISSdS WO00:1T-NV00:6

SNOISSIS WV00:TT-AIV00-6

N3dO MOHS FaVIL Wd00:$-NV00-8

meO ZO—FéHm_OmE Zn_oo“m-zzxoo“w

WVIH0dd Zmoo 6 E..._oo 8
YINNIA WdST:-L
NOILVOOANI / FNODTAM Wd00:L g-v 1TIvd
1139 YINNIA ONII NIVLIVO WNd0S:9
NOILdIOTY] NdO0E:9
TVARRIY 1S3NO WdST:9 AgdOT VIHOOIS
ONRIL NHV % TVIN MTID Wd00:9 a-0 NONW
NOILJED3Y S AISNOIS WdO0E:9-NdSH:S WOOY@dvod
TVSIVIHTI Wd00-v qav 1T1Ivd
A NFTID LNFWNIVLITLNT Wd00:6-Nd00:€ g-V WOOY DNISSTIA
TVARIIV LNAITO 666N00-€
N TIVI VI Nd00:€-NV00:8 gv 1Ivd JNOH ANVTIOH
(@asom
300 NI V0T OLIdIHXT Wd00:8-INd00:9
NI @vOT dOLIdIHXE Wd00:9-NV00:8 OdXd LINAVIN
meO ZO—.—.éhm_Om.m En_oo 8- Emoo i4 2&«& u% m\_m<._.m0m> .EDNE mm_u?i_ ._.<m¢0 L00T

00 VR0

FONVINIOLIId En_mv m.Emoo 8
N3dO ONILVIS Wdot:L
NAdO A890T Wd00:L
N340 S¥00d IAISLNO Nd0¢:9
06¢C "HONVANALLY "LSd | AV NI JAON Ad00:9-INd00 ¥ HdAd AYONV LNTIV SAOD FHL — 1799 90
TVARIYY LNAI'TO Wd00'T | OV HI/NOILVILSIOTA

OdXd LIIVIN

XV HY | §M< d u% m‘_m<.ﬁm©m> ..EDNE mm_v?i_ ._.<mEO Som

._.ZmEZ?HMNHZm / OZ—UZ<Q WV00:C1-Nd00:01

WVIO0dd Wd00:01-Nd00:6

YIANNIA Wd00-6-Nd00-8

STIVLA20D Nd00-8-INd00-L

TVARIIV LNAI'TO Wd00:9-INd00:S
00Z-0ST :ONVANALLY "1S3 | ¥ | AMIVO ANVH — NI AVOTANVE Wd00:5$-Nd00 ¥ avob TVINYIO4 VHATV IHd VHdTV
AV AONVINIOJITd TTVH SOAZA HVISSAN

ONIONVA / [d V00-C1-INd0Z:6

L00C — AT HIM
HOVIESOAEA



L0O/6T/11 SWooy SuNIdI 201U =0-V NOW
4-V J00[I8AQ JoATY = -V O

d-v wooljeq = -V TIvd BaIy AI9[[eD puelD) = DO
[IeH soueuulIoldd SOAdd = Ad H-V swooy] SunesA oo =H-V O
14 O~V S[[eH 1qIyxd = DO-V HA J-V swiooy Sunasiy A1df[en pueid = -V D
SMOHS § J9A0 N3dO Ad490OT Nd00-L TTVH TV1IOTd
+000°01 ‘FONVANALLY "183 | 3V NIdO SYOOA 9dISLNO NJ0E-9 HdAQ 111 SdOd OSYD
TVSIVIHTAE Wd00:+-Wd00:T vV 1Ivd
NI FAON NOILONAOUd NdOE-T1-INd00-T1 dg-v H3
NI JAOIN NOILONAOUd Nd00:T-INV00:8 v 1Ivd
NI SAON NOILDNAOdd WdOE TI-INV00-8 O HA
AV NI JAON NOILONAOYd Wd00:L-INV00:8 J-0 DO ONILFTN TVNINNY FOIAYTS AOOd NO@IOD
OdXd LTRIVIN
100 avOo1l Nd00-TI-INV0-8 OV HA WAV 2 3T9VLIDTA ‘LINYA STV LVIID L00T L 0dd TJ4d
NI
JAON TIOLS AVID NOIOH Wd00:01-INd00-9 H-V 09D
19S JIVHO SdO &= Wd00-L a-v1ivd
NI JAON ¥003d Wd00-01-INd00:-¢ AJITIVO ANVIED
AV NI JAOW NOILLONAOUd Wd00-L-INV00-8 d-v 1ivd ONILITN TVNNNV FOIATIS AOOd NOQIOD
JONVINIOII3d WdOE-6-INdO0E:-L
NddO DNILVIS Wd00:L
SMOHS ¢ ddA0 NAdO AddO1 Wd0£9
+000°01 ‘FONVANILLY "1s9 | 3V NAdO S400d 9aIS1NO Nd00:9 HdAQ 111 SdOd OSYD
1NO-avOT dOLIdIHXA WNd00:8-INd00-1 O~V H3
SNOISSIS Wd00:+-Id00:-1 VOO OVH
SNOISSIS Wd00-ZTI-INV00:6 1494090
SNOISSIS WVOL 1T-INV00:6 109009
H-D
SNOISSIS WV00:T1-INV00:6 | ‘d-d ‘d-V OD ‘d®g-V O
NAdO MOHS 3avil NdO00-T-INV00-8 O~V H4
DNILSVL SYIAID ONINNIM NWV00:6-INV00:8 (VH3) OO
N3IJO NOILVY1SIOTA NdO00:ZI-INV00:8 AJTTIVD ANVID OdXd3 LIIVIN
oomm mOZ<QZm.E.< hmm WVSY9 av o Zy?m_ » m,_m<.ﬁm0m> ._.5¢m mmv?J .r<mmw Bom

X | N300 TNA00L

dINOO:-AV00:8 HdAd I S40d OSAD
SNOISSAS Wd00:v-Nd00-T HV 0D 3VD
SNOISSAS V00: 11-NV00:6 a-21Ive
SNOISSAS WV00:1I-NV00:6 HV 0D dVD
N3O MOHS avil NJO00:S-NV00:8 OVHA 0dxXd LTVIN
00s€ ‘ONVANFLLY "1s3 | 0¥ N3dO NOILLVYLSIOT INd00'SNV00'8. AdITIVD ANVED Wiv4 ® 318V1I0TA “LINYA STV LVIIO L00Z $0da 'aam
FONVINHOIIAd JNAS 18 Nd00:L
N3dO ONILVIS Wd0£:9
N3dO Ag901 Nd00:9
N4dO $4900d AaISLNO0 NJOE'S
00S ‘FONVANALLY ‘1S9 | 3V NI FAOW WNJ00:9-Nd00:F HdAd TOAVD SVIALSRIHO V
NOISS3S LEIVIN a4 WJ00:L-Nd00'9 3909
DONYFHLVD ONLLIVIN WAV A NJ00:9-Nd00:S H-D 0D
LO0T — A TAddM

HIOVIGTSOAEA



LO/6T/T1 Swooy SunddA 201U =0-V NOW
-V JOOISAQ IeATY = 4-V Od

va1y AI9[[en pueln =HO

H-V swooy Sunaas Joo[eAO = H-V O

d-v wooleg = d-v 11vd
[[eH 20UeULIOJad SOAST = Ad

S -V S[leH 1qIyxq = D-V HA A-V swooy Sunsapy A9[[e pueln = 4-V D

JONVINIOIIdd Nd00:S-Wd00-¢

N3dO DNILVIS Nd0€T

SMOHS § 4JA0 NddO Ad901 d00-T

+000°01 ‘FJONVANALLY ‘1S3 N3dO S300d FAISLNO NdOE 1 HdAd I1I SdOd OSUD

1NO FAON NV00-T-INd00-T1 0OY ‘3-0 DD OV TIvd
LINFNNVILITINT NASTOT-INdSY-L d711Ived
INFANIVLITINT NdST:8-IWd0E:L o T1Ivd
LNINNIVILITINT WdOO:TT-INdST-L g H3
LINFANIVLIALINA WdO00-01-INdST:L Vv TIvd
LNTFANIVLITLINT Nd00:11-INd00-L TO ¥9AN ‘4-0 OO
LNO FAON TVILIVd Nd00:6-d00-L DO HA‘VHI
YIAOTONVHO TIVMIIV Wd00:L-INd0¢:S OVHA
YTIAOTONVHO SdO Wd00:9-INd00-S 4099
ONILITA NIVIN ANV JANNIA WdO0E-S-INd00:-¢ OV HE
NAdO ONILVAS YINNIA Nd00:S OVHA
ONILITN GINIFINOD LSvVE 1D Nd00:S-INd00-¥ OHA
ONILITN AINIFINOD 1SIM 1D Nd00:S-INd00-¥ V HA
ONILITN SINH Nd00:-S-INdSY-€ vV T1Ivd
ONILITN WISID Wd00-S-INdOt € g HA
ONILIIN IOV TILITIVIN Wd00:S-WdST'€ 4009
ONILITN SdO LSVI 1D WS- €-INdSY-T OH3A
ONILIT SdO LSIm 1D WdSY-€-WdSP-T V H3

ONILITN SFTVS LSIM 1D WdSP-¢-WdSH-T

DONILIIN SITVS LSVI 1D WASY-€-INdSY-T

N3dO DNILVAS WJ00-€

NAdO DNILVAS WdSY-T

NIdO ONILVAS WdST:T

NddO DNILVAS Nd00:T

NAdO $3OVdS J17dNd Nd00:T

ADdHD ANNOS Wd00:T-INd00-1

JAD3HD ANNOS Wd00-Z-INd00°1

TVSIVIHTS Wd00-7-Wd00-C1

JI0dHO ANNOS Wd00-Z1-INVO0E-T1

TVSIVIHTI OO T-INV00-11

HONNT/ONRIALVD Wd00-T-IWV00-T1

TVSIVIHTA Wd00-TI-INV0E:01

TVSYVIHTA Wd00:-TT-INVO0E-01

TVSIVIHTA Wd00-TT-INV00-01

TVSYVIHTA WdO00-TI-INVO0E-6

TVSIAVIHTA WV00:11-INV00:6

NIJO TIOLS IvVIAOD NO@IOD Wd00:1-INV00:6

ATINO 09D OL NddO ONIaTINgd WV00:6

0SSy -IONVANILLYV 1S3 MOFHD ANNOS NVO-T11-INV00-8 DONILFFIN TVNNNY FOIAYTS AOOI NOTIOD 8 0dd "LVS

V00:Z1-d00:01

Nd00:0T-INd00'8

NGdO ONILVAS NJOE:L

L00T — A'TAd9M
HIOVTESOAF



Swo0y Sunas F0IUOW =1-V NOW
d-V JOO[10AQ 1A = -V OY

BAIY AIS[[2D PURID = D)

H-V SWwooy Sunasy Joo[1oA0 = H-V O

L0/6T/11

{-v woolj[ed = -V TIVd
[TeH 9oUBULIOLId] SOAS] = Ad

9 D-V sileH MqIuxd = DO-V HA -V swooy Sunes A1e[[en pueln = J-V D
1# JONVINIOLIdd Nd0E:6-INdOE:L
NAdO ONILVES Wd00:L
N3dO AddO1 Ndo0¢:9
SMOHS ¢ N340 S¥004d 3aISLNO Nd00:9
¥FAO 00S€ ‘HONVANHLLY "1§3 | 3V FOV.LS NO SdN WIVM NdO00:9-INdSH'p HdAQ YIIOVIOLAN
o) | ONILIIN NVO00: 1T-INV00:8 V09

OZ.—.—.m.EZ S HIDVNVIN >.:U

ATAOVIDLON

¥103d ‘I

FOVLS NO SA10N WOE0T-Nd00-01
TVSYVIHTI NIJO Wd00:01-INd00:L
NAdO S400d 3dISLNoO Wd00:9
0081 ‘JONVANALLY "1Sd | AV NI JAON WNd00:S-INV00:8 €1 034 'SINHL

HOVLS NO SALON Ndog: o_-zn_oo o_
VILSTHOYUO /M TVSIVIHTA Wd00:01-Nd00:L
NI JAON VILSTFHOIO Wd00:TI-NV00-8
AV NI JAON Wd00:5-INV00:8 HdAd YIADVIDLON
ONILIIN
{1l ONLLIIN Wd00:£-INV00:01 WNOOI@IVOd SAOLOTIIA 4O AIVOE —dDV1d LHON JHL ¢103d 'dam

—NA6TIIAVO0'S

NOLLJIO T
ONLLITN 6S: TI-NV00-8 2 T11Ive ANVJNOD HOLON ANO4
dDVLS NO SALON WdOE:01-Nd00:01
TVSIVAHTI Wd00:01- SEoo L
HdAd YTADVADLAN — _ UmD meH

NI JAON

m0<”_.m NO S3LON WJOE:01-Wd00:01
TVSIVIHTI Wd00:01-Wd00-L
p:\4 NI JAON Wd00-$-INV00-8 HdAd YAOVIDLAN

YINNIA

TVNOLLVNIFLNI SNOLLVOINNWINOD T3dSOD

mUZgOmmmm
NA4dO DNILVIS Wdot:L
NAdO S400d AddOT1 Nd00-L
N340 S300d JdISLNO Nd0-9

N00-01-Nd00'8

1N0 9A0N Wd00:6-Nd00:S
FONVINIOIIad Nd00:5-INd00:¢
N3dO ONILVIS Wd0¢:T
SMOHS § 43A0 N340 Ad40T Wd00:C
+000°01 ‘FONVANILLY 183 | 3V NAdO S300d JdISLNO INdOE: 1 HdAd III SdOd OSAD
1NO IAON Wd00-£-INV00:01 JVHI
p:\4 d00:ZT-INV00:8 SVIAV TV 6 2dd 'NNS

L00T — A'TAdIM
HIVIETSOAZA



swooy] SunsA 20U =d-V NOW

L0/6T/11
A-V JOO0[19AQ 1ATY = 4-V O
d-v wooljied = d-v T1Ivd eIy AI9[[RD PURID = DD
[TeH 2oueuLIO}Iag SOA2d = AQ H-V swooy Sunsa JoOo[12A0 = H-V O
L O-V SIlEH ¥qIuxd = DO-V H4 -V swooy Sunes Ais[[en pueln = J-V O

FAVAVd WYTd 4vONS

s TR e L

i

11 TVIO3dS OSYD

0501 ‘FONVANHLLY "1S3

ONILIIN

N00:S-Nd00-TT

¥# IONVINIOIIAd WJ00:+Nd00:T
N4dO ONILVES INJOE:T
NAdO A99071 N00:1
SMOHS € NA4O S$4900d JdISLNO WdO0E:TI

YIAO 00S€ ‘FONVANALLY "1s9 | MV FOVLS NO SdN WIVM WNOETI-INVSTETT HdAd ATAOVIILAN 91 DId 'NNS
€ # QONVINIOI93d WdOE:6-INdOE L
N3dO ONILVES Nd00:L
N3dO A9€901 NdOE'9
NAJO SY00d IAISLNO IN00:9
AOV.LS NO SdN WIvm INd00:9-INdS T:S
IavIvd WN'1d 94vONS Wd00:S-INd00' Y
T # JONVINIOIYAd Wd00:~INd00:T
NAdO ONILVAS NJOE:1
N340 Ag4901 NJ00:1
SMOHS € NAdO $900d JdIs1No WdOE'Z1
FIAO 00S€ TONVANALLY 183 | MV FOVIS NO SdN INIVM NdOE:ZI-NVST T T HdAQ ATIOVIILAN
TINLIV4IA WdST:T1
ONIDNVA - (d NdO00: 1 1-NdOE’S
SYAONVA AVIINN dNHLAV INd00:8
FONVINYOIIAd NVIDIOVIN NdOE:L
WANNIA NJOE:9
SAHOIIdS FINODTAM NdST'9
FONVINIOIIAd NVIDIDOVIN Nd00:9
0ddIA TINODTIM NJOE:S
S$Y00d / TVAIIYV 1sdNO Nd00'S
TVARNY FALLINNOD Wdlog:vy
TYARNY INAITO
dN.Las vi V006 AL¥Vd AVAITOH NOILLVIAY 39

0$ ‘GONVANILLY "1s3 | ¥ IVARIY LNAITD NV00:11 TIVH TV.LIOSY g0030Y % ‘ION ‘ATHONVH ‘HLINS
INTNNINOIAY Nd00¥
NOFHONN'T 00+~ Nd00:1
0¥ “GONVANZLLY 1S3 | ¥ VARV INSITD WdOE-ZI-Nd00:ZI WOOA@IVOL NOJHONNT AVAITOH SIMO8 ANV GNVHSOW
11 JANNIA a-o0 TIve SALVIOOSSY STONVIIL
L00T — AT M

HOVIEFSOAEA



LO/6T/11

{-v wooJeg = d-V TIvd
[[eH 9oUBULIOLId] SOAS] = Ad
8 D~V SlleH ¥qyxqg = O-V HA

d

Swooy SunedA 20IUON =d-V NOW

4-V JO00[IRAQ JOATY = J-V OY

eIy A19[[en pueln = DO

H-V swooy Sunes J0O[19A0 = H-V O
-V swiooy Junos|y A[[en pueld = J-V D

N340 S¥00J 3dISLNO
FOV.LS NO Sdn Wdvm
AAVIVd WN1d ¥vONS
01 # IONVINIOLI3d
NAdO DNILVIS

NddO A44901

N340 S3900d AAISLNO
AV JOVLS NO SdN WIVAM

6 # JONVIAIOJddd
N3dO ONILVIS

NIdO A990OT

N3dO $4900Qa 3aIsLNO
JOVLS NO SdN WIvm
AAVIVd WNTd AVONS
8 # JONVINIOIIdd
N3dO DNILVES

N2dO AddOT

N340 $300d 3dISLNO
AV FOV.LS NO SdN WIVA

L# IONVINIOIYAd
N3dO DNILVIS

N340 A€4d01

NadO SY00d 3dISLNO
FOVIS NO SdN WdvVM
FAVIVd NNT1d IvONs
9 # HONVINIOId2d
N3dO DONILVAS

N340 A9401

N340 $400d IAISLNO
JOVLS NO Sdfl WIVM

S # JONVIIOLdAd
N3dO DNILVIS
N3dO A9401
N4dO $900d 3aIs1NO
FOV.LS NO SdN NIVM
FONVINIOJd3d TOOHOS
N340 DNILVAS
NIdO A€40]1
N3dO S¥00d 3aIs1No
A4 JOV.LS NO SdN WJVM

Wd00:9
Wd00:9-WdST:S
Wd00:5-Nd00:+
Wd00:+-Nd00-T

Wdot:1

Wd00:1

Ndoe Tl
NdOETI-NVST T

WdOE:6-Nd0EL
Wd00:L

Wdo0¢-9

Wd00:9
Wd00:9-NdST:S
Wd00:$-Nd00:¥
Wd00:+-INd00-T
Wdot:1

Wd00:1

Wdoe Tl
WdOE-CI-NVST 11

Wd0¢:6-Nd0t L
Wd00:L

Wdot:9

Wd00:9
Wd00:9-NdS1:S
Wd00:S-Wd0-v
Wd00:+~-INd00:T
Wdot:1

Wd00:1
Wdoe:Tl
WdOE-TI-NVSTETT

Wd0¢:6-Nd0t:L
Nd00:L

Ndot:9

Wd00:9
Wd00:9-WdSYv
WVO00:T1T-INV00:01
WV0Eg:6

WV00:6

WVO0E:8
WVST:6-NVOE:S

HdAd

HdAQ

ATAOVIILAN €2 0dd 'NNS§

YTAOVIDLON ¢COdd "LVS

YTADVADLON 02 0dd "SINHL

61034 "dam

L00T — ATHdIM
HOVTESOAET



L0/6T/11 SWo0y SUNRI 20IUON =0-V NOW
J-V JO0[I3AQ JoATY = -V O

g-v wooieq = -V 1T1vd oIy AI3|[eD pueln = DD
[IeH 9doueuLIo}dd soA2d = Ad H-V swooy Sunasiy JOO[AQ = H-V O
6 -V sileH 1qIUXgd = D~V HA -V swooy Sunasy A1s[en puein = J-y D
NOISSHS TVYINID HOH df
NOISSES TVdINIO HOIH ¥S Wd00:01-NdOE 8 a0 1Ive
NOISS3S TV¥INID O1 $900d Nd00:8 OHH
AIN¥NOL TTvd 35d0d Nd00:€
€ NO £ % AININOL DNOd ONId Wd00:1
STVNIJ SLH0dS WAST:T-NVSHOT g He
NOISSAS TVIINEO HOIH df a-0 11vd
NOISS3S TV¥INIO HOIH “¥S WVOEOT-INVST:6 OH3
NOISS3S TVY¥ANID 01 S400d NVss:8
VIV FNVD HLNOA WdSP:TT-WV00:8 A¥ITIVO ANVED
WVOE'L DAQE L00Z 6703d "LVS

006

1 ‘JONVANTLLY 1S3 | [N TVARRIV LNJITO

GasoD SOAAd V0021

TALOH OL NMN1TA WASPTT
AVY ANNVA HLIM JLIN 3LV WAST:01 a-0 11vd
NOISSAS TVHINAD HOIH “df a-0 1Ivd
NOISSES TV¥ANAO HOIH “¥S Wd00:6-WdOE:L oHa
NOISSES TVYANID OL SY¥00d Nd00:L
S1¥0dS NJ00:9-NdS 1T aH3
ONINAJO HOIH ¥OINNS a-o11Ive
ONINZJO HOIH JOINFS WASP:1-WNdSH:TT O HA
ONINAJO OL SY00d WAST:TI
VIV FNVD HLNOA NdSY: TT-NdSF: T A¥ITIVO ANVED
VI¥V ONIOVLS HLNOA VOE: 1 1-NV00:6 A€€OTHSTIM
TYALNY INIITO V008 DAQE L00T 8209d N4
AT ANVYD
dn1das vayv Iavo A¥ATIVO ANVED
dN13S VIAV SLIOdS WA00:9-Nd00: 1 daHd
dn13s NOLLONAO¥d a-01Ivd

e e o e = e

|E JONVINIOLddd Nd00-L ! NVINAOIIE WIS 92 03d dam

SYIWLSTHHD Y04 @4S01D SAD1440 §72dd ‘sanlL

dN.13$ NOLLONAO¥d 2 JAQE LO0T

SVINLSIIHD Y04 AISOTD SAIII0 $C O0dd 'NOW

100 IAON
11 # QONVINIOJddd Wd0¢:6-NdOt-L
Nd4dO DONILV3S Wd00-L
NAdO A€49OT Wd0¢t:9

L00C — AT HIM
HOVIEFSOAET




LO/6T/11 Swooy Sundd 2010 =0-V NOW

J-V J00[19AQ 19ATY = J-V O

@-v wooleg = d-V TIvVd a1y AI9[[ED pUeID = DD
[TeH 90UBULIONIS] SOAT = Ad H-V swooy Sunesi YOO[IPAQ = H-V O
01 IV S[lBH Mqiyxd = DO-V Hd d-V swiooy Sunssy AI9[eD pueld = J-V D

SAVIA MAN HOJ AASOTO SADIIO

HONVINIOJdAd NV00:-€-INd00-T1 a-0 TIve INJAT AT SAVIA MIN — I3[0
NOILJFOTY TIVH TVLIOTd
AV JONVINIOJSIId 008 HdAQ 11 LIFONOD TVIOIdS OSUD 1€ 040 'NOW

=t % R i S
a it e . S L —- Ll
1NO-avOoT1 NOILONAOYd INdO0:€-INVOE-TIT
NOISSAS TVIINAD HOIH df a-0 TIvd
NOISSES TVIINAD HOIH dS WVSTTT-NV0L-6 JHA
NOISSTS TVIINID Ol S¥00d WV01:6

DAdE LO0T 0€ O9d 'NNS

0061 ‘FONVANALLY 1S3 | (N TVARDIV LNIITO NVO0E:L

QSO SOAAd NV00-TT
3LOH OL NMNITM ANOANAAT WASHT 1
NMOQ ¥VIL VNV SI¥OdS | INdSKII-NdOE0] 00 B g HA

L00T — A TAHIAM
HOVTESOAE



